

Bylaws of the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco
(As amended November 13, 2020)

ARTICLE I – DIRECTORS

Section 1 – *POWERS* – The Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco (“Bank”) shall possess the powers and perform the duties usually appertaining to the office of Directors of banking associations and all such powers as are conferred by law and all such duties as are prescribed by law.

Section 2 – *SUPERVISION & REGULATION MATTERS* – The Board shall not be involved in the supervision and regulation of financial institutions and shall not receive confidential supervisory information. The Board may consider administrative matters related to the supervision and regulation function, such as the approval of the specific portion of the Bank’s budget allocated to the supervision and regulation function. Class A Directors and Class B Directors affiliated with a savings and loan holding company¹ shall not vote on administrative matters related to the supervision and regulation function, although they may be counted to determine whether a quorum of Directors is present. Action by the Board on administrative matters related to the supervision and regulation functions shall be upon a majority vote of the Class C and non-covered Class B Directors at the Board or relevant committee meeting.

Section 3 – *MEETINGS* – The Board shall have power to fix the time and place of holding regular or special meetings. When any regular meeting of the Board falls upon a holiday, the meeting shall be held on the next preceding or the next succeeding business day as the Board may designate. The Chair of the Board may call a special meeting at any time and shall do so upon the written request of any three Directors or upon the written request of the President, or in the President’s absence, the First Vice President, or in the absence of both the President and First Vice President, upon written request of any other Executive Vice President, Senior Vice President, Group Vice President, or Vice President.

Special meetings may be held upon occasion when circumstances arise that are deemed by the President or First Vice President to be of sufficient import as to justify preclusion of prescribed notice under Article I, Section 3. At any such special meeting, or at any Executive Committee meeting held due to the absence of a quorum at such a special meeting, no Chair of the Board or the Chair or the Executive Committee shall be required.

Meetings of the Board may be held in-person, or by means of telephone call, conference call, video conference, web-based platform, or other similar means, and any business may be transacted at such a meeting that could have been transacted at any other meeting of the Board.

¹ For purposes of these bylaws, all Class B Directors affiliated with a savings & loan holding company shall be referred to as “covered Class B Directors.”

Section 4 – *NOTICE* – Reasonable notice of all regular and special meetings of the Board shall be given either by mail, telephone, or electronic communication; provided, however, that notice of any such meeting may be dispensed with if a majority of the Directors waives such notice.

Section 5 – *QUORUM* – A majority of the Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Actions of the Board shall be upon vote of a majority of the eligible Directors participating at any meeting of the Board where there is a quorum. If a quorum is not present at any duly called meeting of the Board, the Directors participating may adjourn from time to time until a quorum is in attendance or three or more eligible Directors may thereupon meet and act as the Executive Committee, and no notice of such meeting shall be required.

Section 6 – *ORDER OF BUSINESS* – The Board may from time to time make such rules as to the order of business as may seem to it desirable.

Section 7 – *COMMITTEES* – There shall be an Audit Committee, and the Board may establish and dissolve other standing committees or special committees to support the administration and operation of the Bank. Standing and special committees established by the Board shall perform such duties, submit such reports and exercise such powers as the Board may delegate to them.

Section 8 – *VACANCIES* – As soon as practicable after the occurrence of any vacancy in the membership of the Board, the Chair of the Board, in consultation with the Bank president, shall take such steps as may be necessary to cause such vacancy, and corresponding unexpired term, to be filled in the manner provided by law.

Section 9 – *FEES AND ALLOWANCES* – In accordance with guidelines issued by the Board of Governors, the Directors shall be paid an annual retainer, daily fees for attendance at meetings (including committee meetings) or while otherwise engaged on official business of the Bank or the Federal Reserve System, and additional compensation for extraordinary duties. Reimbursement for travel and transportation expenses in connection with official business shall be made in accordance with Bank policies for such reimbursements.

ARTICLE II – CHAIR AND DEPUTY CHAIR

Section 1 – *CHAIR OF THE BOARD* – The Chair shall preside at meetings of the Board.

Section 2 – *DEPUTY CHAIR* – During the absence or disability of the Chair, the Deputy Chair shall exercise the powers of the Chair of the Board. In case of the absence or disability of the Chair and Deputy Chair, the remaining Class C Director shall preside at meetings of the Board.

Section 3 – *CHAIR PRO TEM* – In the absence or disability of all Class C Directors or during vacancies in those offices, the Board shall elect one of its members to serve as Chair pro tem.

ARTICLE III – EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Section 1 – *POWERS* – Subject to the supervision and control of the Board, as set forth in Article I of these bylaws, the Executive Committee shall, between meetings of the Board, have power to conduct the business of the Bank, and to exercise all the power and authority vested by law in the Board insofar as such power and authority may lawfully be delegated to the committee.

Section 2 – *HOW CONSTITUTED* – The Executive Committee shall consist of the Chair of the Board, who shall serve as chair of the Committee, the Deputy Chair of the Board, and any other Directors attending the meeting. Should there be a vacancy in the office of Chair of the Board or should the Chair be absent, the Deputy Chair, or in the Deputy Chair's absence the third Class C Director, shall serve as chair of this Committee. In the absence or disability of all Class C Directors or during vacancies in those offices, the Board shall elect one of its members to serve as Chair Pro Tem.

Section 3 – *MEETINGS* – The Executive Committee shall have power to fix the time and place of holding regular or special meetings and the method of giving notice thereof. Such officers as the Board may direct, shall attend meetings of the Executive Committee. Minutes of all meetings of the Executive Committee shall be kept by the Secretary of the Board, and such minutes shall be submitted to the members of the Board at its next succeeding meeting.

Section 4 – *QUORUM* – Not less than three members of the Executive Committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business and action by the Committee shall be upon the vote of a majority of eligible Directors present at any meeting where there is a quorum.

ARTICLE IV – OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES

Section 1 – *APPOINTMENT* – The President and First Vice President shall be appointed and reappointed by the Class C Directors and non-covered Class B Directors subject to the approval of the Board of Governors. On or before March 1 of the year ending in 1 and 6 (e.g. 2006, 2011, etc.), the Class C Directors and non-covered Class B Directors shall appoint a President and a First Vice President to serve for a term of five years, respectively.

A vacancy occurring in the office of the President or First Vice President shall be filled in the manner provided for original appointments and the person so appointed shall hold office until the expiration of the term of their predecessor. Until so filled, or in the absence or disability of the President, the President's powers and duties shall be exercised and discharged by the First Vice President. In case of the vacancy, absence or disability of both the President and First Vice President, the Board may appoint an acting president or an acting first vice president, subject to the approval of the Board of Governors.

The Board shall, in accordance with law, appoint the General Auditor, the Secretary, and officers at the level of Senior Vice President and above, except those whose primary duties involve supervision and regulation matters.

Class A Directors and covered Class B Directors shall not be involved in the selection, appointment, or compensation of officers whose primary duties involve supervision and regulation matters.

Section 2 – *THE PRESIDENT* – Subject to the supervision and control of the Board, the President shall be the chief executive officer of the Bank and shall have general charge and control of the business and affairs of the Bank. All other officers and all employees of the Bank shall be directly responsible to the President.

Pursuant to authority delegated by the Board, the President, and any officer(s) authorized by the President, shall have the authority: (a) to appoint all officers and employees other than those appointed by the Board, (b) to dismiss at pleasure any officer or employee of the Bank, excluding the First Vice President and the General Auditor, (c) to establish the powers and duties of officers and employees except where prescribed by law, these Bylaws or the Board, (d) to establish, within guidelines issued by the Board of Governors, the compensation of officers and employees, except that the compensation of the First Vice President and General Auditor shall be established by the Board, and (e) to take other personnel actions affecting officers and employees. All such appointments and dismissals are subject to ratification by the eligible Directors.

Section 3 – *THE FIRST VICE PRESIDENT* – The First Vice President shall be the chief operating officer of the Bank.

Section 4 – *THE GENERAL AUDITOR* – The General Auditor shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board and be responsible for the proper examination of all the books and functions of the Bank and verification of accounts including verification of custodies held by the Bank for itself and others. The General Auditor shall prepare and submit reports of all audits and investigations to the Board, through the Chair thereof.

Section 5 – *THE SECRETARY* – The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the Board and of all committees thereof, unless some other person is designated to keep the minutes. The Secretary shall have custody of the seal of the Bank, with power to affix it to those instruments or documents as may be required. In the absence or disability of the Secretary, the Board may appoint a secretary pro tem, who shall have the powers and exercise the duties of the Secretary.

Section 6 – *EMERGENCY SUCCESSION* – In case the President and the First Vice President are disabled or absent during a national emergency, or national calamity or other emergency conditions, and until such time as the Board can take action pursuant to Section 1 of this Article, or until the Board of Governors acts in respect to such absence or disability, any officer

at the level of Senior Vice President or higher whose name appears highest on a list signed by the President, reviewed by the Board or its designated Committee, and maintained by the Secretary shall have and discharge all power and authority necessary to administer and take charge of the regular business of the Bank.

ARTICLE V – BANK STOCK

All documents evidencing ownership of Bank stock issued by the Bank shall be signed by an officer of the Bank.

ARTICLE VI – BUSINESS HOURS

The business hours to be observed by the Bank shall be determined, and may be changed, by the President or the President's designee.

ARTICLE VII – AMENDMENTS

These bylaws may be amended at any regular meeting of the Board by a majority vote of the entire Board; provided, however, that a copy of any amendment proposed shall have been sent to each member of the Board at least ten days prior to the meeting at which such amendment is presented. The ten-day notice herein provided may be waived by the unanimous vote of the entire Board if present at the meeting at which such amendment is presented.